VISTEON CORP Form DEF 14A April 30, 2009

### UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

### **SCHEDULE 14A**

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Amendment No. )

Filed by the Registrant b Filed by a Party other than the Registrant o

Check the appropriate box:

- o Preliminary Proxy Statement
- o Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
- b Definitive Proxy Statement
- o Definitive Additional Materials
- o Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12

### VISTEON CORPORATION

(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)

(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant) Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

þ No fee required.

o Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(4) and 0-11.

1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:

2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:

3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):

4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:

5) Total fee paid:

o Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.

o Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.

1) Amount Previously Paid:

2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:

3) Filing Party:

4) Date Filed:

	Persons who are to respond to the collection of information contained in this form are
SEC 1913 (02-02)	not required to respond unless the form displays a currently valid OMB control number.

### NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

# DATE: WEDNESDAY, JUNE 10, 2009 TIME: 11:00 AM EASTERN DAYLIGHT TIME LOCATION: HOTEL DU PONT 11th & MARKET STREETS WILMINGTON, DELAWARE USA

To Visteon Stockholders,

We invite you to attend our 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders at the Hotel du Pont. At this meeting, you and the other stockholders will be able to vote on the following proposals, together with any other business that may properly come before the meeting:

- 1. *Elect ten directors to the Board of Directors.* The Board has nominated for re-election William H. Gray, III, Steven K. Hamp, Patricia L. Higgins, Karl J. Krapek, Alex J. Mandl, Charles L. Schaffer, Donald J. Stebbins, Richard J. Taggart, James D. Thornton, and Kenneth B. Woodrow, all current directors.
- 2. Ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company s independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal year 2009. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP served in this same capacity in fiscal year 2008.
- 3. If presented, consideration of a stockholder proposal regarding majority voting.
- 4. If presented, consideration of a stockholder proposal regarding the ability of stockholders to call special meetings.

You may vote on these proposals in person or by proxy. If you cannot attend the meeting, we urge you to vote by proxy, so that your shares will be represented and voted at the meeting in accordance with your instructions. Instructions on how to vote by proxy are contained in the Proxy Statement and in the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials. Only stockholders of record at the close of business on April 20, 2009 will be entitled to vote at the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

By order of the Board of Directors

Heidi A. Sepanik Secretary

Van Buren Township, Michigan April 30, 2009

# CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	1
IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE	
ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON JUNE 10, 2009	1
VOTING	1
ITEM 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	3
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	5
STOCK OWNERSHIP	9
SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE	10
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS	10
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT	11
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	12
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION	39
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT	40
<u>AUDIT FEES</u>	41
AUDIT COMMITTEE PRE-APPROVAL PROCESS AND POLICIES	42
ITEM 2 APPROVAL OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM	42
ITEM 3 CONSIDERATION OF A STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL REGARDING MAJORITY VOTING	42
ITEM 4 CONSIDERATION OF A STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL REGARDING SPECIAL MEETINGS	44
OTHER MATTERS	46
2010 STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS AND NOMINATIONS	46
MISCELLANEOUS	46
Appendix A Director Independence Guidelines	A-1
Appendix B Directions to Hotel du Pont	B-1

# VISTEON CORPORATION One Village Center Drive Van Buren Township, Michigan 48111

### PROXY STATEMENT

April 30, 2009

### **INTRODUCTION**

The Board of Directors of Visteon Corporation (Visteon, the Company, we, us or our) is soliciting your proxy to encourage your participation in the voting at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders. You are invited to attend the Annual Meeting and vote your shares directly. However, even if you do not attend, you may vote by proxy. As shown in the Notice of Annual Meeting, the Annual Meeting will be held on Wednesday, June 10, 2009, at the Hotel du Pont in Wilmington, Delaware. Directions to the Hotel du Pont can be found in Appendix B.

### IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON JUNE 10, 2009

**Our Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement, Annual Report to Stockholders, electronic proxy card and other annual meeting materials are available on the Internet at www.proxyvote.com, together with any amendments to any of these materials that are required to be furnished to stockholders.** The Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, has adopted rules that allow us to change the way we make our proxy statement and other annual meeting materials available to you. The rules require that we mail a notice to our stockholders advising that our proxy statement, annual report to stockholders, electronic proxy card and related materials are available for viewing, free of charge, on the Internet. Stockholders may then access these materials and vote over the Internet or request delivery of a full set of materials by mail or email. We have elected to utilize this process for the 2009 Annual Meeting. We intend to begin mailing the required notice, called Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials, to stockholders who requested them in advance. If you receive a Notice, you will not receive a paper or email copy of the proxy materials unless you request one in the manner set forth in the Notice. These rules give us the opportunity to serve you more efficiently by making the proxy materials available quickly online and reducing costs associated with printing and postage.

The Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials contains important information, including instructions on how to access and review the proxy materials online and how to vote your shares over the Internet or by telephone.

### VOTING

How to Vote Your Shares

Table of Contents

If you are a registered stockholder, you can vote at the meeting any shares that were registered in your name as the stockholder of record as of the record date. If your shares are held in street name through a broker, bank or other nominee, you are not a holder of record of those shares and cannot vote them at the Annual Meeting unless you have a legal proxy from the holder of record. If you plan to attend and vote your street-name shares at the Annual Meeting, you should request a legal proxy from your broker, bank or holder of record and bring it with you to the meeting.

Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting, we strongly encourage you to vote by proxy prior to the meeting. You may vote your shares prior to the meeting by following the instructions provided on the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials, this proxy statement and the voter website, www.proxyvote.com. If you requested a paper copy of the proxy materials, voting instructions are also contained on the proxy card enclosed with those materials.

1

#### **Table of Contents**

If you are a *registered* stockholder, there are three ways to vote your shares before the meeting:

*By Internet (www.proxyvote.com)*: Use the Internet to transmit your voting instructions until 11:59 p.m. EDT on June 9, 2009. Have your Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials with you when you access the website and follow the instructions to obtain your records and to create an electronic voting instruction form.

*By telephone (1-800-690-6903):* Use any touch-tone telephone to submit your vote until 11:59 p.m. EDT on June 9, 2009. Have your Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials in hand when you call and then follow the instructions you receive from the telephone voting site.

*By mail:* If you requested a paper copy of the proxy materials, mark, sign and date the proxy card enclosed with those materials and return it in the postage-paid envelope we have provided. To be valid, proxy cards must be received before the start of the Annual Meeting. Proxy cards should be returned to Visteon Corporation, c/o Broadridge, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, NY 11717.

If your shares are held in *street name*, your broker, bank or other holder of record may provide you with a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials. Follow the instructions on the Notice to access our proxy materials and vote online or to request a paper or email copy of our proxy materials. If you received these materials in paper form, the materials included a voting instruction card so you can instruct your broker, bank or other holder of record how to vote your shares.

You should provide voting instructions for all proposals appearing on the proxy/voting instruction card. The persons named as proxies on the proxy card will vote your shares according to your instructions. However, if you do not provide voting instructions with your proxy, then the designated proxies will vote your shares for the election of the nominated directors, for the ratification of the Company s independent registered public accounting firm, and against the shareholder proposals. If any nominee for election to the Board is unable to serve, which is not anticipated, or if any other matters properly come before the meeting, then the designated proxies will vote your shares in accordance with their best judgment.

### How to Revoke Your Proxy

If you are a registered stockholder, you can revoke your proxy and change your vote at any time prior to the Annual Meeting by:

Notifying our Corporate Secretary in writing at One Village Center Drive, Van Buren Township, Michigan 48111 (the notification must be received by the close of business on June 9, 2009);

Voting again by Internet or telephone prior to 11:59 p.m. EDT on June 9, 2009 (only the latest vote you submit will be counted); or

Submitting a new properly signed and dated paper proxy card with a later date (your proxy card must be received before the start of the Annual Meeting).

If your shares are held in street name, you should contact your broker, bank or other holder of record about revoking your voting instructions and changing your vote prior to the meeting.

If you are eligible to vote at the Annual Meeting, you also can revoke your proxy or voting instructions and change your vote at the Annual Meeting by submitting a written ballot before the polls close.

### Stockholders Entitled to Vote and Ownership

You are entitled to one vote at the Annual Meeting for each share of the Company s common stock that you owned of record at the close of business on April 20, 2009. As of April 15, 2009, the Company had issued and outstanding 130,570,116 shares of common stock. Information regarding the holdings of the Company s stock by directors, executive officers and certain other beneficial owners can be found beginning on page 9.

A list of the stockholders of record entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be available for review by any stockholder, for any purpose related to the meeting, between 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. at the principal offices of the Company, located at One Village Center Drive, Van Buren Township, Michigan 48111, for ten days before the meeting.

#### **Required Vote to Approve the Proposals**

The Company s By-Laws require that a majority of the Company s common stock be represented at the Annual Meeting, whether in person or by proxy, for the quorum that is needed to transact any business.

*Election of Directors.* The affirmative vote of a plurality of the votes cast at the meeting is required for the election of directors. A properly executed proxy marked to withhold authority with respect to the election of one or more directors will not be voted with respect to the director or directors indicated, although it will be counted for purposes of determining whether there is a quorum.

*Other Proposals.* For each proposal other than the election of directors, the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares represented in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the item will be required for approval. A properly executed proxy marked Abstain with respect to any such matter will not be voted, although it will be counted for purposes of determining whether there is a quorum. Accordingly, an abstention will have the effect of a negative vote.

If you hold your shares in street name through a broker or other nominee and you do not give voting instructions at least ten days before the meeting to your broker or other nominee, then your broker or other nominee may exercise voting discretion only with respect to matters considered to be routine by the New York Stock Exchange, such as the election of directors and the ratification of the appointment of the independent registered public accounting firm. On non-routine matters, such as the shareholder proposals, the brokers or other nominees cannot vote your shares absent voting instructions from the beneficial holder, resulting in so-called broker non-votes. Broker non-votes are not deemed to be votes cast, and as a result have no effect on the outcome of any matters presented, but will be counted in determining whether there is a quorum.

### Where to Find Voting Results

The Company will publish the voting results in its quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of 2009, which we plan to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or prior to August 10, 2009. You will also find the results in the investor information section of the Company s website (www.visteon.com/investors).

### **Cost of Solicitation**

The Company will pay for soliciting these proxies. The Company s directors, officers and employees may solicit proxies in person or by telephone, mail, email, telecopy or letter. The Company has also retained Georgeson Inc. to assist it in distributing proxy solicitation materials and soliciting proxies at a cost of approximately \$10,000, plus reasonable out-of-pocket expenses. The Company will reimburse brokers and other nominees for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses for forwarding proxy materials to beneficial owners.

### **ITEM 1. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS**

The first proposal on the agenda for the Annual Meeting will be electing ten directors to hold office until the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held in 2010. We expect each nominee for election as a director to be able to serve if elected. If any nominee is not able to serve, proxies will be voted in favor of the remainder of those nominated and

may be voted for substitute nominees, unless the Board chooses to reduce the number of directors serving on the Board. The nominees receiving the greatest number of votes cast will be elected. All of the nominees are current directors who have been elected by stockholders at previous annual meetings, other than Mr. Stebbins.

The Board of Directors Recommends that You Vote FOR the Election of William H. Gray, III, Steven K. Hamp, Patricia L. Higgins, Karl J. Krapek, Alex J. Mandl, Charles L. Schaffer, Donald J. Stebbins, Richard J. Taggart, James D. Thornton and Kenneth B. Woodrow as Directors.

### **Nominees for Directors**

**William H. Gray, III** is 67 years old, and he has been a director of the Company since June 2000. Mr. Gray has been Chairman of the Amani Group, a consulting and advisory firm, since August 2004. Prior to that he was President and Chief Executive Officer of the United Negro College Fund from September 1991 to March 2004. Mr. Gray served as a Congressman from the Second District of Pennsylvania from 1979 to 1991, and at various times during his tenure, served as Budget Committee Chair and House Majority Whip. He also serves as a director of Dell Inc., J.P. Morgan Chase & Co., Pfizer, Inc., and Prudential Financial, Inc.

**Steven K. Hamp** is 60 years old, and he has been a director of the Company since March 2008. Mr. Hamp is the former Vice President and Chief of Staff of Ford Motor Company, a global automotive vehicle manufacturer, a position he held from November 2005 to October 2006. Prior to that, he was President of The Henry Ford, a non-profit organization sponsoring historic exhibits, located in Dearborn, Michigan. Mr. Hamp previously served as a Director of the Company from January 2001 to November 2005.

**Patricia L. Higgins** is 59 years old, and she has been a director of the Company since September 2004. Ms. Higgins is the former President and CEO of Switch and Data, a leading neutral interconnection and collocation provider, a position she held from September 2000 to February 2004. Prior to that, she was Chairman and CEO of The Research Board, a business unit of the Gartner Group, for which she also served as an Executive Vice President since January 1999. Ms. Higgins also serves on the board of directors of Barnes & Noble, Inc., Dycom Industries, Inc., Internap Network Services Corporation, and The Travelers Companies, Inc.

**Karl J. Krapek** is 60 years old, and he has been a director of the Company since February 2003. Mr. Krapek is the former President and Chief Operating Officer of United Technologies Corporation, a global supplier of aerospace and building systems products, a position he held from April 1999 to January 2002. Prior to that he served as President of United Technologies Pratt and Whitney division since 1992. Mr. Krapek also serves as a director of Northrop Grumman Corporation, Prudential Financial, Inc. and The Connecticut Bank and Trust Company.

Alex J. Mandl is 65 years old and has been a director of the company since March 2008. Mr. Mandl is currently the non-Executive Chairman of Gemalto, a company resulting from the merger of Axalto Holding N.V. and Gemplus International S.A. From June 2006 until December 2007, Mr. Mandl served as Executive Chairman of Gemalto. Before June 2006, Mr. Mandl was President, Chief Executive Officer and a member of the Board of Directors of Gemplus, positions he held since August 2002. He also serves on the boards of Gemalto N.V., Dell Inc., Hewitt Associates, Inc. and Horizon Lines, Inc.

**Charles L. Schaffer** is 63 years old, and he has been a director of the Company since January 2001. Mr. Schaffer is the former Chief Operating Officer of United Parcel Service, Inc., a global provider of package delivery services.

**Donald J. Stebbins** is 51 years old, and he has been Visteon s Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer since December 1, 2008 and a member of the Board of Directors since December 2006. Prior to that, he was President and Chief Executive Officer since June 2008 and President and Chief Operating Officer since joining the Company in May 2005. Before joining Visteon, Mr. Stebbins served as President and Chief Operating Officer of operations in Europe, Asia and Africa for Lear Corporation since August 2004 and prior to that he was President and Chief Operating Officer of Lear s operations in the Americas since September 2001. Mr. Stebbins is also a director of WABCO Holdings Inc.

**Richard J. Taggart** is 66 years old and he has been a director of the Company since December 2006. Mr. Taggart is the former Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Weyerhaeuser Company, a forest products company, a position he held from April 2003 to June 2007. Prior to that, Mr. Taggart served as Weyerhaeuser s Vice

President, Finance since October 2001. He also serves as a director of 3TIER.

**James D. Thornton** is 60 years old, and he has been a director of the Company since September 2004. Mr. Thornton is the former Senior Executive Vice President and Director of Diversity, Recruitment and People Services for MBNA America Bank, N.A., a credit card lending company. Since joining MBNA in 1997, he has held various leadership positions including Director of Quality Assurance and Director of Sports Marketing, Regional Director Mid-Atlantic Region.

**Kenneth B. Woodrow** is 64 years old, and he has been a director of the Company since October 2004. Mr. Woodrow is the former Vice Chairman of Target Corporation, a retail sales company, a position he held from 1999 until his retirement in December 2000. Prior to that, he was the President of Target Stores since 1994. Mr. Woodrow is also a director of Delta Air Lines, Inc.

### **CORPORATE GOVERNANCE**

### Meetings

During 2008, the Board of Directors held eight regularly scheduled and special meetings. Under the Company s Corporate Governance Guidelines, directors are expected to attend all scheduled Board and committee meetings as well as the Company s Annual Meeting of Stockholders. No director attended less than 75% of the aggregate number of meetings of the Board and Board committees on which he or she served during 2008. All directors, except Mr. Mandl who had a commitment prior to joining the Board, attended the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Guidelines, the non-employee directors meet without management at the end of every regularly scheduled Board meeting, and the independent directors meet without management at least once per year. The presiding director at these meetings is the most tenured independent director in attendance.

### **Director Independence**

The Corporate Governance Guidelines adopted by the Board of Directors provide that a majority of the members of the Board, and each member of the Audit, Organization and Compensation, and Corporate Governance and Nominating committees, must meet the independence criteria of the listing standards of the New York Stock Exchange and other applicable law. For a director to be considered independent, the Board must determine that the director does not have any direct or indirect material relationship with the Company. To assist it in determining director independence, the Board of Directors has adopted the Visteon Director Independence Guidelines, which are set forth as Exhibit A to this Proxy Statement. The Visteon Director Independence Guidelines contain categorical standards of independence which conform to, or are more exacting than, the independence definitions in the New York Stock Exchange listing standards. In addition to applying its guidelines, the Board will consider all relevant facts and circumstances that it is aware of in making an independence determination.

The Board undertook its annual review of director independence in February 2009, and, based on the listing standards of the New York Stock Exchange and the Visteon Director Independence Guidelines, the Board has affirmatively determined that all but one of the non-employee directors, namely Ms. Higgins and Messrs. Gray, Krapek, Mandl, Schaffer, Taggart, Thornton and Woodrow, are independent. None of these non-employee directors had any relationship with the Company (other than as a director or stockholder). Mr. Stebbins is not independent due to his employment as a senior executive of the Company, and Mr. Hamp is also not independent because his brother-in-law is an executive officer of a significant customer of the Company.

### Committees

The Board has established five standing committees. The principal functions of each committee are briefly described on the following pages.

### **Audit Committee**

The Board has a standing Audit Committee, currently consisting of Charles L. Schaffer (Chair), Karl J. Krapek, Alex J. Mandl, Richard J. Taggart and Kenneth B. Woodrow, all of whom are considered independent under the New York Stock Exchange listing standards, the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Visteon Director Independence Guidelines. The Board has determined that each of the current members of the Audit Committee is qualified as an audit committee financial expert within the meaning of the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, and has accounting and related financial management expertise within the meaning of the listing standards of the New York Stock Exchange. During 2008, the Audit Committee held eight regularly scheduled and special meetings. The duties of the Audit Committee are generally:

to appoint and evaluate the independent registered public accounting firm;

to approve all audit and non-audit engagement fees and terms;

to review the activities and the reports of the Company s independent registered public accounting firm;

to review internal controls, accounting practices, financial structure and financial reporting, including the results of the annual audit and review of interim financial statements;

to review and monitor compliance procedures; and

to report the results of its review to the Board.

The charter of the Audit Committee, as well as any future revisions to such charter, is available on the Company s website at www.visteon.com/investors. The Audit Committee Report can be found beginning on page 40.

# **Organization and Compensation Committee**

The Board also has a standing Organization and Compensation Committee, consisting of Karl J. Krapek (Chair), William H. Gray, III, Patricia L. Higgins, Charles L. Schaffer and James D. Thornton, all of whom are considered independent under the New York Stock Exchange listing standards and the Visteon Director Independence Guidelines. During 2008, the Organization and Compensation Committee held six regularly scheduled and special meetings and took action by written consent one time in lieu of additional meetings.

The Organization and Compensation Committee oversees the Company s programs for compensating executive officers and other key management employees, including the administration of the Company s equity-based compensation plans, and approves the salaries, bonuses and other awards to executive officers. Other duties of the Organization and Compensation Committee are generally:

to review and approve corporate goals and objectives relative to the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer, evaluate the Chief Executive Officer s performance and set the Chief Executive Officer s compensation level based on this evaluation;

to review and approve executive compensation and incentive plans;

to approve the payment of cash performance bonuses and the granting of stock-based awards to the Company s employees, including officers; and

to review and recommend management development and succession planning.

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, with the consultation of the Senior Vice President, Human Resources, provides recommendations to the committee on the amount and forms of executive compensation, and assists in the preparation of committee meeting agendas. Pursuant to the Company s 2004 Incentive Plan, the committee may delegate its power and duties under such plan to a committee consisting of two or more officers of the Company except in respect of individuals subject to the reporting or liability provisions of Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The committee has authorized the Senior Vice President, Human Resources, together with the Vice President and Treasurer, to approve awards of up to 50,000 stock options and/or stock appreciation rights (subject to an annual limit of 500,000 stock options and/or stock appreciation rights) and up to 25,000 shares of restricted stock and/or restricted stock units (subject to an annual limit of 250,000 shares of restricted stock and/or restricted stock units) to individuals the Company desires to hire or retain, except any individual who is or upon commencing employment will be subject to the liability provisions of Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Further, the committee has the authority to retain, approve the fees and other terms of, and terminate any compensation consultant, outside counsel or other advisors to assist the committee in fulfilling its duties. For additional information regarding the roles and processes involved in the consideration and determination of executive compensation, including the role of compensation consultants, see Compensation Discussion and Analysis. The charter of the Organization and Compensation Committee, as well as any future revisions to such charter, is available on the Company s website at www.visteon.com/investors. The Compensation Committee Report can be found beginning on page 11.

### **Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee**

The Board also has a standing Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee, consisting of William H. Gray, III (Chair), Karl J. Krapek, James D. Thornton and Kenneth B. Woodrow, all of whom are considered independent under the New York Stock Exchange listing standards and the Visteon Director Independence Guidelines. During 2008, the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee held five regularly scheduled and special meetings. The duties of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee are generally:

to develop corporate governance principles and monitor compliance therewith;

to review the performance of the Board as a whole;

to review and recommend to the Board compensation for outside directors;

to develop criteria for Board membership; and

to identify, review and recommend director candidates (see Director Nomination Process, below).

The charter of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee, as well as any future revisions to such charter, is available on the Company s website at www.visteon.com/investors.

# **Corporate Responsibility Committee**

The Board has a standing Corporate Responsibility Committee, consisting of James D. Thornton (Chair), Steven K. Hamp and Patricia L. Higgins. During 2008, the Corporate Responsibility Committee held three regularly scheduled meetings. The duties of the Corporate Responsibility Committee are generally:

to review and monitor the worldwide performance of the Company as it affects the environment, employees, communities and customers; and

to develop recommendations to management to assist it in formulating and adopting policies, programs, practices and strategies concerning corporate citizenship and public policy matters.

The charter of the Corporate Responsibility Committee, as well as any future revisions to such charter, is available on the Company s website at www.visteon.com/investors.

7

#### **Finance Committee**

The Board has a standing Finance Committee, consisting of Patricia L. Higgins (Chair), Steven K. Hamp, Alex J. Mandl, Richard J. Taggart and Kenneth B. Woodrow. During 2008, the Finance Committee held four regularly scheduled and special meetings. The duties of the Finance Committee generally are:

to review and make recommendations to the Board regarding the Company s cash flow, capital expenditures and financing requirements;

to review the Company s policies with respect to financial risk assessment and management including investment strategies and guidelines;

to review and make recommendations on mergers, acquisitions and other major financial transactions requiring Board approval; and

to consider and recommend to the Board stock sales, repurchases or splits, as appropriate, and any changes in dividend policy.

The charter of the Finance Committee, as well as any future revisions to such charter, is available on the Company s website at www.visteon.com/investors.

#### **Director Nomination Process**

The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee assesses all director candidates, whether submitted by management or a stockholder, and recommends nominees for election to the Board. Recommendations for election are based upon the nominee sintelligence, judgment, foresight, personal character, experience and achievements, and diversity of background and expertise as compared to the present make-up of the Board. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee has the authority to retain consultants to assist with director recruitment. During 2008, the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee did not retain any consultants.

Each year, the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee reviews all eligible director candidates, including incumbents. The committee then decides, based upon the pool of eligible candidates and the number of vacancies to be filled, whom to recommend to the Board to be nominated for election that year. The full Board reviews the committee s recommendations and approves the individuals to stand for election. This is the process that was used to identify and evaluate the current nominees standing for election that appear in this proxy statement.

The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee welcomes stockholder recommendations of director candidates. Stockholders may suggest candidates for the consideration of the committee by submitting their suggestions in writing to the Company s Secretary, including the agreement of the nominee to serve as a director. In addition, the Company s By-Laws contain a procedure for the direct nomination of director candidates by stockholders (see page 46), and any such nomination will also be automatically submitted to the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee for consideration. No individuals were proposed as director candidates for this Annual Meeting by any stockholder.

### **Communications with the Board of Directors**

Stockholders and other persons interested in communicating directly with a committee chairperson or with the non-management directors as a group may do so as described on the Company s website (www.visteon.com/investors), or by writing to the chairperson or non-management directors c/o of the Company Secretary, One Village Center

Drive, Van Buren Township, Michigan 48111.

### STOCK OWNERSHIP

The following contains information regarding the stock ownership of the nominees for election as directors, the directors continuing in office, the Company s executive officers and beneficial owners of more than five percent of the Company s voting securities.

Ownership of the Company s common stock is shown in terms of beneficial ownership. A person generally beneficially owns shares if he or she has either the right to vote those shares or dispose of them, and more than one person may be considered to beneficially own the same shares.

In this proxy statement, unless otherwise noted, a person has sole voting and dispositive power for those shares shown as beneficially owned by him or her. The percentages shown in this proxy statement compare the person s beneficially owned shares with the total number of shares of the Company s common stock outstanding on April 15, 2009 (130,570,116 shares).

### Nominees, Continuing Directors and Executive Officers

The following table contains stockholding information for the nominees for election as directors and the Company s executive officers, as well as stock units credited to their accounts under various compensation and benefit plans as of April 15, 2009. No shares have been pledged as collateral for loans or other obligations by any director or executive officer listed below.

	Common Stock Beneficially Owned		
Name	Number(1)	Percent of Outstanding	Stock Units(2)(3)
William H. Gray, III	3,259	*	51,418
Steven K. Hamp	0	*	273,756
Patricia L. Higgins	0	*	41,459
Karl J. Krapek	0	*	390,400
Alex J. Mandl	25,000	*	14,705
Charles L. Schaffer	0	*	426,238
Donald J. Stebbins	612,758	*	786,066
Richard J. Taggart	20,000	*	23,455
James D. Thornton	1,000	*	41,459
Kenneth B. Woodrow	15,000	*	340,525
William G. Quigley III	136,512	*	240,797
John Donofrio	194,637	*	141,984
Dorothy P. Stephenson	50,260	*	132,752
Terrence G. Gohl(4)	77,796	*	0
Michael F. Johnston(5)	2,255,552	1.7	47,839
All Directors and Executive Officers as a Group			
(19 Persons)	3,783,429	2.9	3,293,637

- \* Less than 1%.
- Includes shares of common stock which the following executive officers had a right to acquire ownership of pursuant to options granted by the Company exercisable on or within 60 days after April 15, 2009: Mr. Stebbins (562,758 shares); Mr. Quigley (116,512 shares); Mr. Donofrio (169,637 shares); Ms. Stephenson (29,110 shares), Mr. Gohl (47,796 shares) and Mr. Johnston (1,972,980 shares).
- (2) For non-employee directors, the amounts shown include stock units credited under the Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors and the Non-Employee Director Stock Unit Plan, and are payable following termination of Board service in cash or shares of stock at the election of the Company.
- (3) For executive officers the amounts shown include Visteon stock units credited under the Visteon Deferred Compensation Plan, which are payable in cash following termination of employment, and restricted stock units awarded under the 2004 Incentive Plan, which vest after one to three years from award and will be settled in cash (or, in certain circumstances, stock at the election of the Company).
- (4) The number of shares and units reported for Mr. Gohl are reported as of April 3, 2009, the date of his resignation from the company.

(5) The number of shares and units reported for Mr. Johnston are reported as of November 30, 2008, the date of his retirement from the company.

### **Other Beneficial Owners**

The Company believes that the following table is an accurate representation of beneficial owners of more than 5% of any class of the Company s voting securities as of April 15, 2009. The table is based upon reports on Schedules 13G and 13D and Forms 4 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission or other information believed to be reliable.

Title of Class	Name and Address of Beneficial Owner	Amount and Nature of Ownership	Percent of Class
Common Stock	Pardus Capital Management L.P. 590 Madison Ave, Suite 25E New York, NY 10022	30,100,000 shares held with sole voting power and 30,100,000 shares held with sole dispositive power	23.4%
Common Stock	Donald Smith & Co., Inc. 152 West 57th Street New York, NY 10019	7,505,700 shares held with sole voting power and 8,581,500 with sole dispositive power	6.57%

#### SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires the Company s executive officers, directors and greater than 10% stockholders to file certain reports (Section 16 Reports) with respect to their beneficial ownership of the Company s equity securities. Based solely on a review of copies of reports furnished to the Company, or written representations that no reports were required, the Company believes a Form 4 for Dorothy Stephenson related the withholding of 3,850 shares upon the vesting of a restricted stock award was filed eighteen days late due to an administrative error.

#### TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS

Our Ethics and Integrity Policy instructs all employees of Visteon, including the Named Executive Officers, to avoid conflicts between personal interests and the interests of Visteon, as well as any action that has the potential for impacting the Company adversely or interfering with the employee s objectivity. The policy also requires any employee having a financial interest in, or a consulting, managerial or employment relationship with, a competitor, customer, supplier or other entity doing business with Visteon to disclose the situation to their manager or to the legal or human resources departments of the Company. The Company s compliance group implements the Ethics and Integrity Policy and related policies and annually requires all management employees, including the Named Executive Officers, to complete a questionnaire disclosing potential conflicts of interest transactions. In addition, the Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing our ethics and compliance program, including compliance with the Ethics and Integrity Policy, and all members of the Board are responsible for complying with such policy. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee reviews the professional occupations and associations of board nominees, and annually reviews transactions between Visteon and other companies with which our Board members and executive officers are affiliated to the extent reported in response to our directors and officers questionnaire. Our Ethics and Integrity Policy is in writing. See page 46 of this proxy statement under Miscellaneous for instructions on how to obtain a copy.

In early 2005, purported class and stockholder derivative actions were filed in federal and state courts in Michigan against the Company, the non-employee directors and certain Named Executive Officers. These actions include: (i) a purported class action alleging that the Company, certain of its current and former officers and its independent registered public accounting firm violated federal securities laws by making materially misleading statements; (ii) purported stockholder derivative actions alleging that certain of the Company s current and former officers and directors breached their fiduciary duties in connection with the matters alleged in the securities class action discussed immediately above; and (iii) purported class actions alleging that certain current and former employees, officers and directors breached their fiduciary duties under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA) by, among other things, continuing to offer the Company s stock as an investment alternative under the Visteon Investment Plan and the Visteon Savings Plan for Hourly Employees and/or failing to disclose complete and accurate information regarding the prudence of investing in the Company s stock. The parties have reached settlements of the ERISA and purported stockholder derivative matters and the purported federal securities laws class action was dismissed, and such dismissal was affirmed on appeal. Pursuant to the indemnification provision contained in the Company s Amended and Restated By-laws, the Company is paying the expenses (including attorneys fees) incurred by the defendants in defending these actions where not covered by insurance policies.

Mr. Hamp is the brother-in-law of William Clay Ford, Jr., the Executive Chairman of Ford Motor Company. Ford is currently the Company s largest customer and Ford and the Company have engaged, and are expected to engage, in a number of commercial and other transactions having values in excess of \$120,000 in the ordinary course of their businesses. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee reviewed this relationship in connection with Mr. Hamp s election to the Board.

### **COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT**

The Organization and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors (hereafter referred to as the Committee ) oversees the Company s programs for compensating executive officers and other key management employees, including the administration of the Company s equity-based compensation plans, and approves the salaries, bonuses and other awards to executive officers. The Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis below with management of the Company, and, based on such review and discussion, the Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that the compensation discussion and analysis so stated be included in this Proxy Statement.

Organization and Compensation Committee Karl J. Krapek (Chairman) William H. Gray, III Patricia L. Higgins Charles L. Schaffer James D. Thornton

11

### **EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION**

#### **Compensation Discussion and Analysis**

### **Executive Compensation Program Objectives**

#### Overview

The Company believes that an experienced, motivated and effective executive team is critical to the long-term success of its business. Thus, the primary objectives of the Company s executive compensation program are to recruit, motivate and retain highly qualified executives. In meeting its primary objectives, the Company has structured its executive compensation program to support the Company s strategic plans and objectives, including compensation program costs, and provides strong alignment of the interests of its executives with the creation of stockholder value.

The mix and total amount of compensation in any year reflects market competitive practices, the realities of the Company s financial position and its industry. The Company believes that the proportion of variable, or at risk, compensation should increase as an employee s level of responsibility increases.

In light of economic conditions which continued to deteriorate through 2008 and into 2009, the Company took a number of actions to reduce the Company s compensation expense. These actions were intended to produce immediate cash savings and included reduction in salaries associated with reduced work weeks as well as temporary salary reductions, suspension of the Company match in the 401(k) savings plan and the elimination of the car allowance.

### **Benchmarking Considerations**

The Company and the Committee use competitive market data to inform their decision-making processes on elements of the Company s compensation and benefits programs. Although the Company and the Committee use the market-based ranges derived from surveys and studies compiled by compensation consultants, and other available market data, neither the Company nor the Committee attempts to set all compensation elements for all executives within a particular market-based range. Rather, the Company and the Committee evaluate additional factors, such as individual experience and performance, organizational level (internal relationships) and critical need for the position when executives have been recruited externally.

For executive level positions, pay ranges have been developed using Towers Perrin s U.S. Compensation Data Bank (CBD) General Industry Executive Database (approximately 1,000 companies) and Hewitt Associates Total Compensation Measurement<sup>Im</sup> (TCM) database (approximately 600 companies).

The firm of Frederic W. Cook & Co., Inc., an independent executive compensation consulting firm, advises the Committee on competitive market practices and trends as well as on specific executive compensation matters as requested by the Committee. The Company maintains no other direct or indirect business relationships with this firm.

### **Roles and Processes**